ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 18, 2010
8:.06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 394

"An Act relating to the data processing and tel ecommunications
activities of the state; relating to the security of certain
data processing records of the executive branch and meking the
Department of Admi nistration responsible for the security of
t hose records; and meking the conm ssioner of admnistration the
chief information officer."

- MOVED CSHB 394( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 53
"An Act relating to eligibility for nenbership on state boards,
conmm ssions, and authorities.™
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 394

SHORT TI TLE: EXECUTI VE BRANCH RECORDS SECURI TY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLER

02/ 23/ 10 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 10 (H STA, FIN
03/ 18/ 10 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 53

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2010



SHORT TI TLE: CANDI DATES | NELI G BLE FOR BDS/ COVM SSI ONS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) DOOGAN

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) STA, JUD

01/ 28/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 28/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 10 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 18/ 10 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HB 394.

JI M POUND, Staff

Representative Wes Kel | er

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 394 on behal f of Representative Keller, sponsor.

RACHAEL PETRO, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during the hearing on HB
394.

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 394.

CLYDE "ED' SN FFEN, JR., Senior Assistant Attorney General
Conmmrer ci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Civil D vision (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
394.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE DOOGAN

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed HB 53 as sponsor.

PRI YA KEANE, St aff

Representati ve M ke Doogan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
53 on behal f of Representative Doogan, sponsor.

HOLLY HI LL, Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB

53.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:06: 26 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
Petersen, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.
Represent ati ves Johnson and G uenberg arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 394- EXECUTI VE BRANCH RECORDS SECURI TY

8:07:12 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 394, "An Act relating to the data processing and
tel ecommuni cations activities of the state; relating to the
security of certain data processing records of the executive
branch and making the Departnent of Admnistration responsible
for the security of those records; and nmeking the comm ssioner
of adm nistration the chief information officer."

8:07:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced HB 394. He said the ability to use conputers to
exchange information and cross distances and tinme has changed
the way people live. He stated that the primary goal of HB 394
is to ensure that state records do not get rel eased
i nappropriately. The bill wuld put together a mnmanagenent
system by which to define the standards being used for the
security of various records and the exchange of those records.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2010



He nentioned sone departnents and the types of records they
keep. He offered his wunderstanding that $400 nillion was
recently spent in the Departnent of Education to expand a
dat abase which currently tracks each student to also track the

education of each student. He said the bill does not propose to
define each individual database, but proposes a situation in
which each departnment would retain its own infornmation

technology (IT) system and a central information officer in the
state woul d be added.

8:14: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Chair Lynn, said the
state's data processors tell him there are "very sophisticated
hits on the information in the state daily.” In response to a
foll owup question, he said there are no provisions in the bil
for backup of data. He explained that it is difficult to wite
a bill regarding technol ogy, because technol ogy changes so fast.

CHAIR LYNN clarified that he wants to know if there wll be a
requirenent for records to be backed up, wthout namng the
method by which that would be done. He tal ked about the
vul nerability of paper records to fires.

8:17:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that the point nade by Chair
Lynn is exactly why he introduced this bill. He indicated that
backup standards should protect records, but said HB 394 does
not specify how that nust be done. He clarified that the
proposed legislation would result in a starting system upon
whi ch other efficiencies could |ater be initiated.

8:18: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER rem nded the conmttee that in 2002, there
was a security leak, and the followng information of sonme state
wor kers was | eaked: name, social security nunber, and date of
birth. Specifically, a contractor with the state lost the
information. He offered further details.

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER said HB 394 would designate the
commi ssioner of the Departnent of Administration as the person
to establish protocols and standards related to security. He
said the Departnent of Adm nistration seenmed |ogical to him but
he said he does not care which departnent, as long as a
structure is in place.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2010



8:21:32 AM

JIM POUND, Staff, Representative Ws Keller, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Keller, sponsor of HB
394, highlighted Section 4, beginning on page 3, line 28, as
being the nost inportant section of the bill. Everything prior
to Section 4, he explained, is existing |anguage in statute.
M. Pound said security breaches in conputer technology are a
wor | dwi de probl em He said currently each departnment has its
own security neasures for records, but the proposed |egislation
would "establish a single plan for security in the state of
Al aska." He added that whatever the plan is, it will have to be
updated frequently to guard agai nst hackers.

8:23:43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER remarked that he had no intent in

sponsoring HB 394 to denean the standards that are currently in
pl ace in the various state departnents.

8:24: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to language in the bil
title, on page 1, line 3, which read "making the Departnent of
Adm ni stration responsible". Next, he pointed to |anguage in
the fiscal note prepared by Guy Bell, the assistant comm ssioner
of the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent, who wites
that the proposed legislation "places overall authority". He

then highlighted that the fiscal note prepared by Anna Kim the
director of Adm nistrative Services, says that [HB 394] "all ows"
the Departnent of Adm nistration to create regulations.
Finally, he pointed out that the sponsor statenment read that the
HB 394 "assigns" [the departnent]. He opined that it would be
hel pful to use the same word, and he questioned whether that
word shoul d be "designates.”

8:25: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that the only assigning proposed
by the bill is that of the chief information officer (CIO, who
would not be able to "access ... anyone's ... HPA record,"”
because that would be illegal.

8:26:38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 4, line 15,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(d) The depart nent shal | adopt regulations to
i npl enent this section.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG relayed that M. Brooks told him the
regul ati ons woul d be adopted under the Admi nistrative Procedures
Act, AS 44.62. He then directed attention to |anguage on page

4, line 29, which would set a due date for the first report "on
January 1 of the fifth calendar year after this Act takes
effect.” He opined that five years is a long tine to wait for a

report. He asked the bill sponsor what he thinks about changing
that requirenent to the third or fourth year in order to get
progress reports sooner.

8:27:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he would support that. In response
to a followup question, he said he would appreciate it if
Representative Guenberg would ask the departnent for its
recomendation regarding when the first report could be
expect ed.

8:28:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that HB 394 is about security of
records and proposes that the departnent is "responsible for the
operation and management of automati c dat a processi ng
resources"”. He directed attention to |anguage on page 4,
beginning on line 21, which read as foll ows:

(1) "data processing records" neans the records that
are produced or namintained by the automatic data
processing resources and activities of the state
agency and that are not being held by the Al aska State
Ar chi ves;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that subsection (2), on page 3,
beginning on line 3, addresses nanagenent of records, which is
under existing statutes. He observed that the new |anguage in
Section 4 addresses only automatic data processing records,
whereas state agencies currently deal with records. He asked if
that is the intent of the sponsor.

8:29:57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that his intent was "to nake the
protocol standards structure over all records in the state,” and
he said he finds the word "automatic" confusing. He said he
woul d i ke the departnment to weigh in on that word.

CHAIR LYNN enphasized the urgency of protecting the state's
i nformati on.

8:31: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification whether that
| anguage nmeans t hat t he commi ssi oner will have sol e
responsibility or there will be designees invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that there would
be a team of designees, but that the responsibility would lie
wi th the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Adm nistration.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that he is trying to figure out
if the wording acconplishes the intent. He asked if there are
ot her subsections addressing strictly |IT functions or other
duties and powers of the conm ssioner.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER r esponded, " assumne it's t he
conprehensive description of the responsibilities of the
Department of Adm nistration, and that's worth checking."

8:34: 29 AM

RACHAEL PETRO, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of
Adm ni stration, stated that HB 394 would affect not only the
Department of Administration, but all the departnents within the
executive branch. She said every departnent in the executive
branch is subject to different federal requirenents. For
exanple, the Department of Public Safety manages the crim nal
justice information system which has specific FBlI policies it
must follow, and both the Departnent of Health & Social Services
and the Division of Retirenent and Benefits wthin the
Departnent of Adm nistration nust adhere to the Health | nsurance
Portability and Accountability Act (H PA). Essentially, she
rel ated, departnents are concerned that the provision in HB 394
woul d sonehow put them out of conpliance with federal laws. For
that reason, she said, the admnistration is not ready to take a
position on the proposed legislation, but is very conmtted to
working wth Representative Keller to insure that the various
requi renents are accomrodat ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2010



8:36:19 AM

M5. PETRO said she would provide an wupdate of where the
adm nistration is regarding the inplenentation of security
procedures and policies on a statewde basis, and how that
relates directly to Section 4 of the proposed |egislation. She

rem nded the conmttee about the passage of House Bill 65 years
ago, which was the Personal Information Protection Act (PlIPA).
That bill, along with the initiatives and efforts that ensued in

the Departnent of Adm nistration and throughout the executive
branch provided further inpetus to identify information security
of ficers and conputer security designees within each executive
branch agency, as a nmeans of ensuring that each departnent has a
focus on securing its information system She stated that
essentially, the information security officers and conputer
security designees wthin each departnent provide the basic
security infrastructure wthin each departnent for ongoing
security initiative. She said the information security officers
are designated by each departnent’'s conm ssioner.

M5. PETRO stated that security awareness and best practices
training is currently under devel opnent through a contract wth
the University of Menphis, and on line training for departnent
information security officers (1SCs) and conputer security
designees (CSDs) is expected to be available about this tine

next year. Eventually, all state enployees, as well as
political subdivisions of the state wll be able to avail
t henmsel ves of this training. Currently, she said, security

policies and procedures are in place, but the Security Ofice of
the Enterprise Technology Services Division wthin the
Department of Admnistration is currently working to update
those security policies. The policies, she related, are based
on the Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
st andar d. She added that ITIL is the industry leader for IT

best practi ces. Ms. Petro stated that these policies will be
di ssem nated through departnent information security officers,
and, at that point, they will be reviewed and discussion nay

result in policy nodification to address conflict with existing
departnment business practice, as well as specific requirenments
of different departnents.

M5. PETRO stated that the next step will be to put auditing in
pl ace, to ensure that everyone involved is conplying with the
security policies. The departnment s in the process of
devel oping those tools, and wll be inplenenting that process
first within the Departnent of Adm nistration.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2010



8:39:25 AM

MS. PETRO addressed previously stated concerns of the commttee.
First, regarding Representative Guenberg's concern about the
time frame for reporting, she said she thinks two to three years
woul d be acceptable, given the departnent's current progress in
i npl enenting policies and procedures, which, she added, are
being designed to allow each departnent to nodify to fit their
busi ness needs. In response to Representative Seaton's
previously expressed concern about definitions, MVs. Petro
related that the departnent heard from at |east one other

departnment that is also concerned about the definitions. She
said the definitions definitely need to be "cleaned up." She
noted that in 20 years the state will not be tal king about paper
docunments - all technology will be conputerized. She said the
departnment would be happy to work wth the bill sponsor
regarding the definitions and "how they relate.” Ms. Petro

of fered to answer questions.
8:40: 50 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there is any language in the bill as it is
currently drafted that woul d cause problens for the departnent.

M5. PETRO in response, reiterated that the departnment would
like to work with the bill sponsor and the departnments to ensure
that there is no problematic |anguage, and would prefer to do so
"before the bill is passed.™

CHAIR LYNN restated the urgency of passing legislation on this
i Ssue.

8:43: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, regarding the fiscal note from Guy Bell,
directed attention to the |last sentence of the analysis, which
read as foll ows:

The <cost to the departnent's business wunits of
conplying with any new policies derived as a result of
this legislation is indeterm nate.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO observed that the anmount for fiscal year
2011 (FY 11) shows as zero, as if it could be determ ned. He
asked if there is sone way to nmake the fiscal note "reflect nore
accurately what the cost of this activity will be."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 18, 2010



8:44:51 AM

IVS. PETRO responded that currently state departnents are
required to follow statewi de security policies, which is the
cost of doing business. She said there nmay be sone changes in
the future, but "it is part of what we do every day today." She
said although there may be future, discreet, specific budget
requests "related to the itens,”" she does not anticipate any
additional costs associated with the newer, updated policies to
cone.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Petro believes that "putting
all the information in the hands of one departnent” will enhance
or dimnish security. He pointed out that if a hacker gets into
the system he/she may get nore information in one attenpt.

M5. PETRO answered that the proposed legislation would not do
anything to consolidate databases that are centered on different
departnents and divisions of state government. In Section 4,
she said, the proposed bill outlines that the Departnent of
Adm nistration, through the CO would develop and adopt
standards, policies, and procedures. She said current policies
are being updated. Regardi ng security philosophy, M. Petro
stated that the department subscribes to the view of security in
dept h. She said there are varying strategies related to IT
infrastructures, and she indicated that in-depth strategy is the
i ndustry standard.

8:47:22 AM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnment of Adm nistration,
stated that it is inportant to renmenber that the state has been
spending a significant amount of noney in the last five years
reinforcing its data networks. He said each departnment is the
keeper of its own data, whether paper or digitized. The State
Archives has rules regardi ng how paper docunents are stored. He
said the words "automatic data processing” were probably put
into statute in the 1970s when "punch cards" were still in use.
M. Brooks said the Departnent of Admnistration is trying to
secure the state's wide area network, into which all state
agencies join. Then those departnments have their own |ocal area
net wor ks. He said even the legislature is part of the state's
wi de area networKk. He said the departnment is working to secure
that infrastructure, but it is a collaborative effort with all
the other departnents. Regarding the indetermi nate fiscal note,
he stated, "Responses to real threats in the future could result
in ... responses by the state and state agencies that could cost

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 18, 2010



nmoney, and | think it's indetermi nate because it's just really
unknown at this tine what you m ght be |ooking at."

8:49: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 4,
lines 4-6, which read as foll ows:

(b) The departnment shal
(1) devel op, i mpl enent , and mai ntai n
policies to ensure that data processing records are
secure fromunl awful rel ease;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the departnent is doing that now
or if each individual departnment currently is required to do
that, but under HB 394 the Departnent of Adm nistration would be
responsi bl e.

8:50: 36 AM

M5. PETRO confirnmed that the Departnment of Administration is
doing that now, because the baseline policies that govern the

state's wide area network and all departnments wthin the
executive branch are dependent upon that network. She expl ai ned
the reason she had nentioned House Bill 65 previously is because
that bill was a direct inpetus that helped the Departnent of

Adm ni stration organize other departnents and ensure that there
are information security officers key in each departnment to
ensure that those departnments follow the area w de network
requirenents, as well as their own business requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the ensuing | anguage
on page 4, lines 7-9, which read as foll ows:

(2) define the responsibilities for the
security of the data processing records of each state
agency, conmunicate the responsibilities to the state
agency, and coordinate the responsibilities anong
state agenci es; and

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "Wuld that be expanded under this
bill beyond what you're doing currently wth the wde area
net wor k?"

M5. PETRO said she does not think the departnment's efforts would
be expanded beyond what is currently bei ng done.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he presunes the answer would be the
sanme regardi ng paragraph (3), which read as foll ows:

(3) establish procedures for nmintaining the
security of the data processing records and provide
training for stage agency personnel to inplenment the
pr ocedur es.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON returned to the term "automatic data
processing” in Section 4, and asked, "Do you see that your
currently responsibility - what you're doing - isS enconpassing
that, or do you see your current responsibility as larger than
that for automatic data processing ... resources?"

M5. PETRO answered that she foresees no expansion of the
departnment's responsibilities under Section 4 of HB 394.

8:53:40 AM

M5. PETRO in response to Representative Guenberg, confirnmed
that the department would be able to handle a requirenent to
file a first report in two years.

8:54:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that under HB 394, the five years
is given as the deadline for the first report only; each
subsequent report would be due every two years. He said he
wonders if the reason for that is to give the departnent a
chance to put a new systemin place.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is probably the reason, but
he wants to the report to be produced sooner.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked Ms. Petro if "this"™ would in any
way renove accountability from the departnent for its own
security and place that on the adm nistration.

8: 55: 29 AM

M5. PETRO prefaced her answer by saying she is not an attorney.
She reiterated that Section 4, as currently witten, would not
expand the responsibilities of the Departnment of Adm nistration,
whi ch i's currently  working col l aboratively wth ot her
departnments out of necessity. She stated, "The information
technol ogy infrastructure on which every departnment builds its
specific business systenms to neet ... the needs of their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2010



constituents are reliant on what we do at the Departnent of
Admi nistration. W are intertw ned."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON clarified that he is talking about
accountability, not responsibility.

M5. PETRO said she thinks wth the developnent of updated
policies and standards will cone additional accountability. She
reiterated that the updating is already taking place.

8:58: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the final sentence in the
fiscal analysis witten by Anna Kim which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Additionally, with the Comm ssioner of Admnistration
fulfilling the role of Enterprise CIO each agency
head Wil | ose t he critical and i mport ant
responsibility for departnent data storage, security,
and protocol s.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Petro if there is just a
phi | osophi cal agreenment "as to whether that's correct in the
fiscal note.”

M5. PETRO reiterated that there are different concerns from
different departnents that need to be addressed. The departnent
needs to work wth the sponsor to ensure that everyone's
concerns are addressed.

9: 00: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN directed attention to Section 3 and
guestioned if there m ght be an issue of separation of powers.

9: 00: 56 AM

CLYDE "ED' SN FFEN, JR, Senior Assistant Attorney General,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),
Department of Law, said he does not have an answer at this tine,
but will look into that. Notw t hstanding that, he said his

initial reaction is that he does not think there is an issue
related to the separation of powers.

9:01: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Sniffen if the Departnent of Law
has any of the sane concerns that the Departnent of Education
has expressed.

9:01: 32 AM

MR. SNI FFEN answered no. He concurred with Ms. Petro's previous
statement that the bill would not expand any of the
responsibilities <currently in place for the Departnment of
Adm nistration, and he said he is unsure how the bill would
affect the Departnment of Education's role in continuing to do
what is necessary to protect its information. He said just

because he does not understand the concern of the Departnent of
Educati on does not nean there is no reason for it, and he said
it would be interesting to find out what that concern is in a
l[ittle nore detail

9:02:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his understanding that M.
Sniffen questioned the separation of powers issue. He stated,
"This clearly says agencies nean agencies of the executive
branch.” He said the Departnment of Law is an executive branch
and he asked, "W're not thinking about the court system here
are we?"

MR. SNI FFEN answered that is correct, which is why he does not
think there is a problem "with this [|anguage here." He
expl ained that he just has not had a chance to talk about the
i ssue nuch.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for confirmation that "it doesn't
include the legislature either,” only the executive branch.

MR. SNl FFEN answered that is correct.
9:03: 09 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:03:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern that Section 3 seens to
be dealing only with automatic data processing resources. He
opined that if the bill is trying to coordinate activities,

Section 3 should list all the pieces of information that are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 18, 2010



intended. 1In response to Chair Lynn, he said he is not ready to
of fer an anmendnent without further consideration of the matter.

9: 05: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 1, as foll ows:
Page 4, line 29:

Delete "fifth"

| nsert "second"
9:05:19 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that the requirenent on page 4,
line 29, could be deleted, since there is already a requirenent
[in subsection (e), on page 4, lines 16-19] for a report to be
submtted every two years.
9: 05: 44 AM
MS. PETRO sai d Representative Johnson's suggestion woul d work.

9:05: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
sponsor nodded his head in response.

9:06: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdr ew Anendnent 1.

9:06: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 2, as foll ows:

Page 4, lines 26-30:
Del ete Section 5

[ Amendnment 2 was treated as adopted. ]

9:07: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 394, as anended, out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 394(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 18, 2010



The comm ttee took an at-ease from9:07:50 AMto 9:10: 26 AM

HB 53- CANDI DATES | NELI G BLE FOR BDS/ COVM SSI ONS

9:10: 30 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 53, "An Act relating to eligibility for menbership on
state boards, conm ssions, and authorities."

9:10: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 53, Version 26-LS0296\R, Bullard, 2/10/10, as work
draft.

CHAI R LYNN obj ected for discussion purposes.
9:11: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE DOOGAN, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 53, reviewed that the proposed |egislation would require
nmenbers of boards and conm ssions to resign their positions when
applying for political office. He said there are people who
serve on boards and conmssions who are in a position to

materially affect the Ilives of <citizens by advancing the
interests of candidates, financially and otherw se. For
exanple, he said there is a man serving on the Human Rights
Comm ssion who has filed for the Al aska State Legislature. He
stated, "He ..., in fact, would be able to materially affect
sonet hing that sonmebody wants and be in a position to ask that
same person for ... canpaign noney. And because of that,

t hink that one or the other of those things has to go."

9:15: 20 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if it would be possible to create a rule that a
candi date who is serving on a board or comm ssion nay not accept

a contribution from anyone on that board or conm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said that would be a difficult law to
draft.

CHAIR LYNN noted that legislators are not allowed to accept
contributions during a |egislative session.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN sai d nenbers of boards and commi ssions are
appointed for a certain nunber of years, and their schedule
follows that of the board or conmm ssion. He said he could not
figure out a way "to go at it in that direction, to ... limt
your ability to raise funds if you're running for office,
outside of the limtations we already have."

9:17: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for confirmation that the proposed
| egislation pertains only to |legislative or executive offices.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN confirnmed that is correct.

CHAI R LYNN specified that would nean the offices of |egislator,
governor, and |ieutenant governor.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nentioned an "advi sory comm ssion,"” which
is set up through the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G) .
He asked, "How far down does this go when you say boards or
commi ssi ons?"

9:18:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN related that there are approximately 120
boards and conm ssions. He said, "They don't go down to the
| evel that you're talking about." He indicated that the bil
pertains to boards and conm ssions that are set up in statute to
be able to take "sone sort of action.” He offered his

understanding that that does not include advisory boards, for
exanpl e.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that the commttee has a list of 98
boards wth influence over constituent groups [included in the
commttee packet]. He said he wants the legislation to be clear
whether or not it includes advisory boards that are appointed or
have their own el ections, or conmunity councils, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN responded that he is "not trying to get
down to that level at all."

9: 20: 39 AM
CHAIR LYNN asked if a clear |line has been drawn.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN characterized the bill as "a rough attenpt
to limt the nmenbers of boards and conmm ssions that in nost

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 18, 2010



cases have got sone ability to effect what the state does for
[and] to citizens."

9:21: 20 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed concern that wunder HB 53, a person who
gives up his/her seat on a board or conmm ssion in order to run
for political office but does not get elected, wll end up
wi t hout his/her seat on the board or conmm ssion. He said it is
difficult to find people to serve on boards and commi ssi ons.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN responded that what Chair Lynn said is
true; however, he pointed out that the person would be allowed
to serve on that board or comm ssion after a waiting period of
one year.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that getting back on a board or conm ssion
requi res an opening. He asked the reason for the proposed year
wai ting peri od.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN explained that without the year waiting
period, the person running for office could still nake prom ses
to do things on the board or conmssion for the person
supporting his/her canpaign.

9:24: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN, in response to Representative Gatto,
confirmed that currently an elected official is allowed to serve
on a board. He pointed out that sone boards require that a
| egislator fill a seat.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO related that he serves on the Al aska
Comm ssi on on Post Secondary Education, although he is not sure
he fills a seat because of being a |egislator. He asked if
there could be a grandfather <clause, by which a |egislator
already serving on a board could renmain on that board while
runni ng for office.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN offered his belief that there would be no
such grandfather clause opportunity under HB 53. In response to
a followup question, he stated that there is an exception under
HB 53 for the positions legislators have on boards or
conmm ssions "by virtue of the fact that they are legislators.”

9:27:33 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 18, 2010



PRI YA KEANE, Staff, Representative M ke Doogan, Alaska State
Legi slature, answered questions on behalf of Representative

Doogan, sponsor of HB 53. In response to Representative Gatto,
she directed attention to a legal nmenorandum from the bill
drafter, dated February 10, 2010. In the nmenorandum M.

Bul lard maintains that there is a separation of powers issue in
having legislators serve as public nenbers on state boards,
conm ssions, or authorities - it is not |egal. However, she
said certain boards, comm ssions, or authorities have positions
for sitting legislators. Those |egislative positions are exenpt
under HB 53. The purpose of Version R was to clarify that
exenpti on.

9: 29: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the |ast page of the
aforenentioned list [included in the commttee packet] of 98
boards with influence over constituent groups, and read the sone
of the nanmes on it, including: the National Park and Park
Monunment Subsi stence Resource Commi ssions, the Al aska Veterans
Advi sory Council, the Board of Veterinary Exam ners, the Wter
and Wastewater Wrks Advisory Board, the Wod-Ti kchik State Park
Managenent Counci |, and the Yukon River Panel Advi sory
Comm ttee. He said nmany of those entities are run by involved
citizens. Especially in rural Al aska, he said, it is difficult
to fill these positions with people who are active and want to
be involved in their comunity. He surmised that it is an
uni ntended consequence that the bill would prevent people who
have been active and responsible in their comunities from
running for office without giving up their position for an
entire year in the event they are not el ected.

9:31: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN responded that that is not an unintended
consequence. He opined that people have to nake choices in
life, and under HB 53, a person would have to decide whether to
run for office or stay on a board or commssion. He said it is
the sane choice that a public enployee would have to make if
he/ she ran for office.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the title of the
original bill version, which includes state boards, commi ssions,
and authorities. He then noted that the title in Version R
includes only state boards or comm ssions; however, on page 2
lines 14 and 17, of Version R authorities is included.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 18, 2010



9:33:14 AM

M5. KEANE responded that she is not clear why the bill drafter
chose [to include "authorities" on lines 14 and 17].

9:33: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that [on page 2, lines 15 and 18

of Version R], federal office is included. He questioned, "I

guess we're controlling the board, so if you run, we can renove

you from the board, so, why couldn't we do the sane thing with
muni ci pal el ecti ons?"”

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN replied, "I'm not sure that we couldn't."
He indicated that rmunicipalities can decide whether or not to
address the issue.

CHAIR LYNN questioned whether "any of wus on conmittee here
[coul d] run for Congress and still keep our job here.”

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN r esponded no.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that there is a |egislator
currently in office who is running for a federal election.

CHAIR LYNN noted that legislator is not filing for reelection to
the [l egislature].

9:35:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said his point is that while cities have
control of their elections, the legislature has control of their
boards and conm ssions; therefore, requiring a person to resign
froma state board in order to run for a city office would be
problematic for a municipality. In response to Representative
Doogan, he said, "I think there's a difference between making it
a requirenment that you not be on a board and saying you're
getting kicked off a board if you do." He indicated that one
may lead to discrimnation issues. He concluded, "I think it
has to cone fromus, it can't conme fromthem"™

9: 38: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN admitted Representative Johnson mght be
right.

9: 38: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested the bill could pertain to city,
state, and federal elections.

9:39: 28 AM

HOLLY HI LL, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion
(APCC) , noted that the definition of state boards or
comm ssions, as well as a list of boards which report public
financial disclosures, is found in AS 39.50.200(b).

9:40: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to |anguage on page 1,
line 5 of Version R which read: "if the person sought
nom nati on or became a candidate". He offered his understandi ng

that until a person files a letter of intent [to run for office]
he/ she cannot raise funds.

IVS. H LL responded that is correct. She offered her
under standing regarding nom nation, that until an individual is
appoi nted, he/she does not file forms with APCC.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that any intent the bill sponsor
may have of including |anguage to ensure that people do not use
their influence on a board or comm ssion to |everage
contributions would be redundant, because currently if sonmeone
seeks nom nation and has not filed a letter of intent, he/she is
prohibited from soliciting or raising noney in pursuit of that
of fice.

9:43: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON described a situation in which three
people from a political party are nomnated for a political
of fice. He asked if all three nom nated would be ineligible to
serve on a board, even though only one of them could possibly
get el ected.

9:44: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the bill would apply to
anyone who put his/her name forward to the selection process.
He stated, "So, it could be a dozen people in each community
that wanted to put their nanme forward for that seat because
they're seeking the nom nation, as | read seeking the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 18, 2010



nom nation, and yet they've had no ability to file an intent or
to rai se canpaign funds."

9:44: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN directed attention to page 2, line 1
whi ch read as foll ows:

(2) has filed a nomnating petition under AS
15.25.140 - 15.25.200, AS 15.30.026, AS 15.40.180,
15. 40. 190, 15.40.270 - 15.40. 290, or 15.40.430 -
15.40. 450 to become a candidate for elective state or
federal executive or |egislative office;

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said his understanding of that |anguage is
that a person has filed for office. In response to
Representative Johnson, he stated his belief that appointnents
are not covered in the aforementioned statutes.

9:45:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN stated, "That was basically the sane
thing I was going to say, ... that unless they have filed a
declaration as a candidate then they wouldn't be covered, so, |
think it's already covered."

9:46: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined that HB 53 is a confusing bill.
He described proposed legislation as possible solutions to
percei ved problens; however, he said he is not certain what
probl emis being addressed by HB 53.

9:46: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said one of the responsibilities of the
legislature is to safeguard not only the integrity of the
el ectoral process, but also the citizens' faith in it. He said
the proposed legislation is his attenpt to address that issue
In response to a follow up question, he said the point is to "do
what you can to nmeke sure that people don't think that sonebody
gets a leg up."

CHAIR LYNN said the issue relates to not only reality, but
per cepti on.

9:48: 53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "I don't know that anybody is

going to get a ... leg up because they're on the board of
hai rdressers or sonething like that. 1In fact, | don't know very
many of these boards where you'd really get a leg up." He said
his second concern is that there are many ways a person can get
a leg up that don't relate to "this." He said he is not certain

that the problem has been properly identified. He questioned
whether this issue is sonmething that can be legislated. He said
he had thought that the purpose of the bill was to prevent
bri bery, but now he is "nore confused than ever."

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN responded that he 1is having trouble
under standi ng the cause of the confusion. He stated, "Either
you think that there are opportunities that other people don't
have, that go along wth being a nenber of a board or
comm ssion, in electoral ternms, or you don't."

CHAIR LYNN remarked that nost people running for office have
sone special interest group either supporting or opposing them

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN concurred, but added, "These are not
advant ages that you get from being put in a position basically
that you can get that through the State of Alaska - this is a
different deal."

9:53: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN, in response to Representative Gatto, said
the year waiting period begins fromthe date of the el ection.

9:54:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said a person who, for exanple, has
served on the Board of Fisheries and then gets elected to be a
| egi sl ator would have "huge support” from the board, which is
why HB 53 nakes sense.

9:56:17 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
w shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:56:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 18, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN remarked that he has no expectations that
HB 53 will pass into law, and expressed wllingness to start
over with it in the next |egislative session.

9: 58: 05 AM

CHAIR LYNN renoved his objection to the notion to adopt the
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 53, Version 26-LS0296\R,
Bul l ard, 2/10/10, as work draft.

9:58: 18 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renminded the commttee that there is no

reference to "authorities" in the title of Version R while
there is mention of "authorities” within the body of Version R

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG opined that "authorities"™ should be
added to the title of Version R

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that the bill be held.
9:58: 56 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked the bill sponsor to cone back with a commttee
substitute as soon as possible.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed conpliance with the idea of
including "authorities" in the title of Version R and said he
woul d have a conmittee substitute made.

[HB 53 was held over. The notion to adopt the commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 53, Version 26-LS0296\R, Bullard,
2/ 10/ 10, as work draft, was |eft pending.]

10: 00: 53 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 18, 2010



